
 

 

 

Simon Hobbs 
Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services 
County Hall 
Matlock 
Derbyshire 
DE4 3AG 
 
Extension 38328 
Direct Dial 01629 538328 
Ask for Ivan Walters 
 

 
PUBLIC 

 
To:  Members of Improvement and Scrutiny Committee - Resources 
 
 
 

Wednesday, 27 May 2020 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
Please attend a meeting of the Improvement and Scrutiny Committee - 
Resources to be held at 10.00 am on Thursday, 4 June 2020 in This 
meeting will be held virtually. As a member of the public you can view the 
virtual meeting via the County Council's website. The website will provide 
details of how to access the meeting, the agenda for which is set out 
below. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Simon Hobbs 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services  
 
A G E N D A 
 
PART I - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
1.   Apologies for Absence  

 
To receive apologies for absence (if any) 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

3.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
To confirm the non-exempt minutes of the meeting of the Improvement and 
Scrutiny Committee – Resources held on 5 March 2020 
 

4.   Public Questions (30 minute maximum in total)  
 
(Questions may be submitted to be answered by the Scrutiny Committee, 
or Council officers who are attending the meeting as witnesses, on any 
item that is within the scope of the Committee.  
 

5.   Discussion with the  Cabinet Member for Strategic Leadership, Culture and 
Tourism  
 

6.   Rationalisation and the use of Council assets to meet sustainability and Net 
Zero Carbon ambitions (Pages 5 - 16) 
 

7.   Regular Update on Financial and Budgetary Position (Pages 17 - 22) 
 

8.   Update on  Review of Scrutiny  
 

 



PUBLIC                                                                                                 Agenda Item 3 
                                                                                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                   

1 
 

MINUTES of a meeting of the IMPROVEMENT AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE – RESOURCES held at County Hall, Matlock on 5 March 2020. 

 
PRESENT 

 
Councillor T A Kemp (in the Chair) 

 
Councillors N Barker, B Bingham, J Boult, C Moesby, C Short, J Twigg, M 
Wall and G Wharmby. 
 
 
01/20  MINUTES RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the 
Improvement and Scrutiny Committee – Resources held on 5 December 2019 
be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
02/20  PUBLIC QUESTIONS There were no public questions. 
 
03/20  COR[PORATE ENVIRONMENT POLICY AND CARBON 
REDUCTION PLAN WITH RESPECT TO PROPERTY SERVICES The 
Committee was asked to consider the Council property related elements of the 
Carbon Reduction Plan.  
 

On 5 December 2019 this Committee received a presentation from 
Denise Ludlam (The Council’s Climate Change Officer) entitled Delivering the 
Climate and Carbon Reduction Manifesto.  The presentation described the 
Derbyshire Environment and Climate Change Framework, which set out the 
approach the Council and district and borough councils will take to tackle the 
broader climate change agenda.  The presentation also introduced the 
recently developed Carbon Reduction Plan which aimed to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions from the Council’s own estate and operations.  A 
copy of the Carbon Reduction Plan and the revised Corporate Environment 
Policy that was approved by Cabinet, on 21 November 2019, and was 
attached at Appendix 1 to the report.  
 

Kathryn Sowerby-Warrington (Carbon & Energy Manager) attended the 
meeting and presented in more detail the Property Services elements of the 
Carbon Reduction Plan. She also fed back to Members, the lessons learned 
from the “Tackling Climate Change Together” event that had taken place at 
County Hall on 3 March 2020. 

 
 A number of Potential areas for inclusion in the Improvement and 
Scrutiny - Resources 2020-21 Work Programme were discussed: including  
  

 • Rationalisation 

 • Employee engagement 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

2 
 

 • Energy efficiency  

 • Renewables  
– Council owned land 

– Out of county e.g Warrington Borough Council  

– Develop or lease land 
 • Purchasing of renewable energy 

– Renewable Energy Guarantees of Origin (REGO) 

– Power Purchase Agreements (PPA) 
 • Land assets 
 –Natural capital 

– Low carbon developments e.g. housing 
 Geo Thermal 
 Minerals and Aggregates Induustry 
 
Members made a number of comments and asked questions which 

were duly noted or answered.  
 
 Following discussion a number of topics were suggested for potential 

inclusion in the Committee’s Work Programme 
 
The Chairman thanked Kathryn for her update. 

  
 RESOLVED (1) to note the Council property related elements of the 
Carbon Reduction Plan and the feedback on the “Tackling Climate Change 
Together” event ; and 
 
 (2) that the Chairman would liaise with the relevant officers to prepare 
a draft work programme for consideration at the next meeting of the 
Committee.   

 
04/20  D2N2 LEP SCRUTINY WORKING GROUP – PROGRESS 
REPORT Members were informed of the progress made by the working group 
established to scrutinise the activities of the D2N2 Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP). 
 

This was the first progress report regarding the working group 
established, in September 2019, to scrutinise the activities of the D2N2 LEP.  
The working group was made up of Members from this Committee and a 
representative from each of the following councils: Bassetlaw District Council, 
Chesterfield Borough Council and Nottingham City Council. 

 
At the first meeting of the working group (2 December 2019) evidence 

was received from Sajeeda Rose (Chief Executive, D2N2 LEP), Tom 
Goshawk (Head of Capital Programmes, D2N2 LEP), Natalie Gasson 
(Operations Manager D2N2 LEP) and Sarah Wainwright (Senior Accountant, 

Page 2



 

3 
 

Accountable Body). The focus of the meeting was on the measures that had 
been put in place to improve programme delivery since the LEP received the 
rating of “Requires improvement” for “Delivery” in the 2019 Annual 
Performance Review. Members were briefed on the LEP’s structure and 
governance arrangements before engaging in a question and answer session 
on risk management, project re-profiling and performance of the Local Growth 
Fund Programme. 

 
The working group met again on 18 February to discuss the work 

programme, agree the approach for future challenge meetings and to begin 
the work of identifying lines of enquiry. It was agreed that the working group 
would meet again after the end of the financial year and after quarter 2.  It was 
also agreed that the meetings would be structured around, but not restricted 
to, the LGF reports submitted to the Investment Board (namely, LGF 
Programme Performance Overview, LGF Budget, Output Performance 
Update, D2N2 Milestones). 

 

RESOLVED to notes the progress report. 

 
05/20  REGULAR COMMITTEE UPDATE ON THE FINANCIAL AND 

BUDGETARY POSITION Peter Handford, Director of Finance and ICT attended 
the meeting to provide an update on the financial position. The following items 
were highlighted: 
 

- The Budget and 5 year plan had recently been approved 
- Financial Year end was approaching and the completion of accounts 

were underway 
- The 5 year plan would present a balance budget for the next 3 years 

with further reductions likely to be required for years 4&5. The 
position remained good 

- There remained many areas of funding uncertainty in relation to the 
Comprehensive Spending Assessment; Social Care funding, 
Funding for Highways repairs following the floods; Fair funding 
Review and Business Rates retention. 

- Next weeks Budget announcement was awaited 
 

Members made a number of comments and asked questions which 
were duly noted or answered.  

 
  Particular reference was made to the potential financial implications for 

the authority in the wake of the Corona virus outbreak. Mr Handford confirmed 
that there would inevitably be implications, if the virus spread in terms of both 
resources and staffing, which may affect the authority’s ability to deliver 
frontline services. However the authority was alert to the threat and would act 
accordingly as and when required.   
 

Page 3



 

4 
 

 The Chairman thanked Mr Handford for his update. 
 
RESOLVED to note the update on the financial and budgetary 

positions. 
 
 

Page 4



Rationalisation and use of 

council assets to meet 

sustainability and net zero 

carbon ambitions

Improvement and Scrutiny Committee – Resources

4 June 2020

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 6



Agenda

• Strategic overview

• Council’s ambitions

• Corporate Property’s role

• PSP (Derbyshire) LLP

P
age 6



Environment and Climate 

Change Framework

Overarching 

Framework
Environment and Climate Change Framework

Programme Environment and Climate Change Programme (based on carbon budgets and trajectories)

Theme


Energy





Travel





Resources





Air Quality





Economy





Natural 

environment





Partnership 

working



Relevant 

policies, 

strategies & 

plans

Energy 

Strategy 

(draft)

LEVI 

Strategy 

(2019-2029) 

(approved)

Local 

Transport 

Plan 3

(2011-2026)

Derbyshire’s 

Waste Strategy

(Dealing with 

Derbyshire’s 

Waste 2013-

2026)

(approved)

Health and 

Well-being 

Board 

Air Quality 

Strategy 

(2020-2030)

(approved)

Good Growth 

Strategy

(2020-2030)

(draft)

Natural 

Capital 

Strategy

(2020-2030)

(proposed)

District & 

borough area-

wide policies 

and plans e.g. 

Local Plans, 

supplementary 

planning 

guidance

Key delivery 

partners
Local 

authorities, 

residents, 

VCS, 

businesses, 

Distribution 

Network 

Operators, 

Midlands 

Energy Hub

Local 

authorities, 

Go Ultra Low 

Nottingham, 

businesses, 

VCS,

hospitals, 

residents

Local 

authorities, 

residents, 

businesses

Derbyshire 

Health and 

Well-being 

board, local 

authorities, 

businesses, 

residents

Local 

authorities, 

businesses, 

D2EE, Local 

Economic 

Partnership 

(D2N2), VCS, 

Midlands 

Energy Hub

Local 

authorities, 

Trent Valley 

Landscape 

Partnership, 

Peak District 

National Park, 

Local Nature 

Partnerships, 

VCS

Local 

Authorities, 

social housing 

providers, 

residents, 

businesses, 

VCS 

P
age 7



DCC Carbon Reduction 

Plan 

P
age 8



Asset Rationalisation 

and disposal
• ~4,500 land and property assets

– Asset value in excess of £2 billion 

– Property running costs: £18m

– Utility costs: £4m

– Maintenance backlog: £72.5m

– Annual repairs and maintenance 

budget: £4.5m

• Drivers;
– Revenue savings

– Capital receipts

– Regeneration and economic development

– Net zero GHG emissions targets

P
age 9



Asset Challenge

Buildings

• Efficiency – Utility reduction & CO2 reduction, 

retrofit

• Generation – solar, PV, turbine

• Construction & Design – water harvesting, PV, 

wind, electric vehicle charging

Land

• Offsetting - Tree planting

Climate 

Change

Actions & 

Outcomes

Development

• Low carbon Housing

• Low carbon developments

P
age 10



Low carbon Derbyshire

P
age 11



Climate change delivery 

through assets

• Natural Capital 

– Tree planting – carbon sequestration 

– Bio-mitigation measures for developers 

• Low carbon developments

– Land agreement

– JV

– DCC as developer

• PSP (Derbyshire) LLP 

– Options (promoter, active partner, developer)

D
C

C
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

P
age 12



PSP (Derbyshire) LLP

• JV with Public Sector Plc

– ‘Relational Partnering’

– Infinite Expertise & Access to finance

– Independent VFM assessment (CIPFA)

• Outcomes

– Asset rationalisation

– Housing

– Commercial development…

P
age 13



Land Promotion
Milldown School
Tiger Trailers
Longsight School
Westbrook Gateway

Development Management
Bolton Central
Winsford Industrial
Friars Nursery
Stourport Short Term Accommodation
West Bridgford mixed use
Housing - Council funded

Joint Venture
Hinguar - Tern
Friars - Tern
Winsford - Rula
Housing - Investor funded

Asset Management
Bolton GR
Gateshead TNRP
High Street Southampton
Lye Enterprise Centre
Housing - Management

Expertis
e

Delivery
Risk & 

Funding

PSP

Project

Counci
l

PSP (Derbyshire) LLP

Flexibility in delivery

P
age 14



Questions

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Public 

 

1 

PHR-1078 

Agenda Item No 7 
 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  
 

I & S RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 

4 June 2020 
 

Report of the Director of Finance & ICT 
 
 

UPDATE ON THE FINANCIAL POSITION AND THE COST IMPLICATIONS 
OF THE CURRENT COVID-19 OUTBREAK 

 

1 Purpose of the Report 
 
To provide members with an update on the current financial position of the 
Council. 

 
2 Information and Analysis 
 
The Council has nearly completed the work to finalise its accounts for 2019-
20.  This is expected to show a small overall underspend in line with previous 
budget monitoring and financial plans.  The Council would also expect to 
report that it has a high degree of confidence that the financial position at the 
end of 2020-21 would be in line with previously agreed planning and that there 
is every expectation that compliance with the new CIPFA Financial 
Management Code and achievement of positive reports from Mazars (the 
Council’s external auditors) would continue.  However, Covid-19 has 
effectively thrown all financial planning into a state of flux and is unlikely to be 
clear until later in the financial year. 
 
Councils completed their second cost pressure returns to MHCLG on potential 
costs of Covid-19 on the 15 May 2020.  The parameters for the return were to 
identify costs incurred in April, projected costs in May and estimates for June 
and July; no costs beyond July were to be included; only the current spike in 
cases was to be assumed with a tail of cases; County Councils were 
prevented from including any Council Tax of localised Business Rates effects 
in their returns. 
 
The Councils run rate of costs, income shortfall and delayed savings 
continues at around £10m per month, without further Government support we 
will run out of the funding made available (£37m) in mid-July. 
 
County Councils have submitted a wide variation in funding implications of 
Covid-19 and Derbyshire’s cost projection is currently towards the bottom end 
of the scale. 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



Public 

 

2 

PHR-1078 

There are further risks and uncertainties that have yet to be quantified, these 
include: 
 
o Adult Social Care - The pandemic has seen occupancy levels in the care 

home sector reduce from the normal 90% to 70%.  As a result, the sector 
has requested that local authorities continue to pay them additional income 
to put them back in a position as if 90% occupancy rates were being 
achieved.  This would be an additional pressure to the Council over and 
above those highlighted in this report.  Early estimates suggest that the 
cost of compensating for under occupancy could be at least £5m a month 
and – the care providers want any payments backdated to the 1 April.   

 
o Children in Care - Whilst the figures quoted above assumes that costs will 

be triggered in the three-month period to the end of June, higher levels of 
expenditure will be incurred well beyond this timeframe.  Evidence from 
other countries that have relaxed lockdown is that there is a spike in the 
numbers of children needing the support of social care services, therefore 
these costs will not be unravelled on 1 July 2020 even if normality is 
resumed at that date.  

 
Should the profile of placements change and there is a requirement for the 
commissioning of more agency residential placements the costs will be 
significantly higher.     

 
o Personal Protective Equipment stocks - Demand is high for equipment 

at this time, and is expected to continue while ever there is no reliable 
vaccine or treatment for Covid-19, therefore the Council will continue to 
purchase large volumes of PPE when opportunities arise in the knowledge 
that it usage is high and this will not change in the medium term.  Any 
surplus stocks at the end of the pandemic can be sold to the NHS which 
may result in a loss to the Council or can be retained by the County council 
for future use.  Any such PPE retained can be designated as stock and will 
not, therefore, be defrayed to budgets until the point at which they are used 
by the council, subject to the stock not becoming obsolete.   

 
The Government’s national Clipper scheme is aimed to support 
organisations across the UK with the procurement of PPE.  
Notwithstanding the scheme is still to be fully operational.   

 
o Staffing - Whilst some staffing costs have been reflected above, costs may 

increase as redeployment takes effect over the coming months.   
 

o Savings - The savings shown in are based on a desktop exercise by 
departmental managers.  Whilst these figures provide a general estimate of 
savings slippage for 2020-21, further detailed analysis will be required to 
understand the true extent of the delay.  This work will be completed as 
part of the business as usual budget monitoring activity early in the new 
financial year.  

 

Page 18



Public 

 

3 

PHR-1078 

o Project Activity - The Council has a number of ongoing projects and 
discretionary activity.  Pending the Council’s response to the pandemic, a 
number of these actions have been suspended, however, recent weeks 
have seen a return to business as usual activity.  They will be reviewed as 
the Government’s position on funding available to local authorities 
becomes clearer in the coming weeks.      

 
o Recovery - The Council will need to make significant investment if it is to 

help stimulate the local economy as it emerges from the impact of the 
pandemic in the coming months.  On the 13 May 2020, the Office for 
National Statistics published figures showing that Gross Domestic Product 
(GDP) is down by 2% in the three months to the end of March 2020, this 
being the largest economic decrease in the UK since the financial crash in 
2008.  GDP fell 5.8% in March compared to the previous month.    

 
The capital programme will be reviewed which is likely to result in 
additional borrowing which could lead to an increase in debt repayment 
and interest charges of up to £5m to support capital projects.   

 
Budget 2020 announced a third round of the Local Infrastructure Rate, a 
£1bn pot of discounted lending to support local authorities to deliver 
infrastructure projects in England.  The Local Infrastructure Rate is 
designed to help incentivise local authorities to construct infrastructure that 
otherwise would not be affordable.  The Government will look favourably 
on projects where supporting evidence is provided to demonstrate that they 
can begin quickly once funding is agreed.  The bidding round will run from 
11 April 2020 – 11 July 2020.  

 
The Council is developing a Recovery Strategy which will examine how the 
Council returns to business as usual activity and seeks to adapt its 
operations to comply with social distancing guidelines.  It is anticipated that 
there will be additional costs associated with recovery which are yet to be 
costed.  A cited example across the sector are the additional costs of home 
to school transport as the number of passengers on buses and coaches 
will be limited to abide with social distancing rules. Therefore, additional 
transport costs will be incurred as additional buses will be needed. 

 
MHCLG have offered the following informal comments on the funding 
position: 
 

o When asked if further funding would be available they referenced the 
four points made by Robert Jenrick at a recent Housing, 
Communities and Local Government Committee: 

- Councils will be fully funded where they have been asked to 
undertake specific things to respond to Covid-19 

- Where councils have made decisions to carry out additional 
schemes that is their decision and will not be funding 

- Irrecoverable income – which was recognised in the second 
tranche of funding 

Page 19



Public 

 

4 

PHR-1078 

- Council Tax and Business Rates income – will look to gather data 
and take a judgement when the Government has better 
information.  

o Where a Council has made an unwise “commercial investment”, 
Government will come to a deal with local government but it will be 
painful 

o The Government’s next steps are to come up with a plan which 
includes reviewing the returns submitted last week, conversations 
with a number of individual local authorities to be in a position to 
present advice and information to the Secretary of State in the next 
couple of weeks.  

o It would be helpful if Councils could provide an indication of when 
they will be taking reports to Council/Committees with their revised 
budgets with a few bullet points of what the report is likely to advise 

o The position is evolving and the Secretary of State needs to 
approach HM Treasury and demonstrate the financial predicament 
faced by local authorities 

o In relation to the questions regarding reserves in the MHCGL cost 
data return, the intent was to illustrate that if no further funding was 
forthcoming local authorities would have to dip into reserves and the 
implications of doing so 

o MHCLG will consider underwriting the loss of council tax and 
business rates and see this as a better option than providing further 
funding at this time 

o In responding to questions about funding timetables for the next 
financial year, the Spending Review was planned for July and this 
would now likely be in the Autumn.  It would most probably cover 
one year.   

o Recognition that capital schemes aid recovery and Government is 
looking at all schemes and new ones.  Acknowledged that there was 
concern about meeting grant conditions and clawback. 

o The £600m recently announced to passport to the care sector was 
going to be subject to terms and conditions.  Much yet to be clarified. 

 

3 Financial Considerations 
 

The Council is in a similar position to every other council in that it is reliant on 
continued further support from Government to meet the costs of Covid-19, 
without this continued further support every council will have to consider 
scaling back significantly on other spending areas during the current financial 
year; redraft medium term financial plans; and re-examine long term reserve 
levels.  The Government have indicated that further resources will be made 
available where the case is well made, it is therefore important that council’s 
continue to lobby effectively and explain the funding position proactively. 
 

Page 20



Public 

 

5 

PHR-1078 

4 Officer’s Recommendation 
 
To note the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PETER HANDFORD 
 

Director of Finance & ICT 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Rationalisation and the use of Council assets to meet sustainability and Net Zero Carbon ambitions
	7 Regular Update on Financial and Budgetary Position

